
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Board of Governors of the City of London School 

 
Date: WEDNESDAY, 17 JUNE 2015 

Time: 10.30 am 

Venue: CITY OF LONDON SCHOOL, QUEEN VICTORIA STREET, EC4V 3AL 

 
Members: Deputy Billy Dove 

Sophie Fernandes 
Stuart Fraser, (ex-officio) (Ex-
Officio Member) 
Marianne Fredericks 
Alderman David Graves 
Deputy the Revd Stephen Haines 
Ronel Lehmann, (co-opted) 
(External Member) 
Lord Levene of Portsoken, (co-
opted) (External Member) 
Edward Lord 
 

Christopher Martin, (co-opted) (External 
Member) 
Sylvia Moys 
Deputy Joyce Nash 
Dame Mary Richardson, (co-opted) 
(External Member) 
Ian Seaton 
Deputy Dr Giles Shilson 
Sir Michael Snyder, (ex-officio) (Ex-
Officio Member) 
Deputy James Thomson 
Prof. Whitehouse, (co-opted) (External 
Member) 
 

 
 
 
Enquiries: Jacqui Daniels 

tel. no.: 020 7332 1480 
jacqui.daniels@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

 
 

 
Lunch will be served at 1pm. 

N.B. Part of this meeting could be the subject of audio visual recording  
 
 

 
John Barradell 

Town Clerk and Chief Executive 

Public Document Pack



2 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

Part 1 - Public Agenda 
 
1. APOLOGIES 
 
2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF 

ITEMS ON THE AGENDA 
 
3. ORDER OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
 

 Order of the Common Council of 23 April 2015, appointing the Board and setting out 
its terms of reference.  
 

 For Information 
 (Pages 1 - 2) 

 
4. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN 
 

 To elect a Chairman pursuant to Standing Order No. 29. 
 

 For Decision 
5. ELECTION OF DEPUTY CHAIRMAN 
 

 To elect a Deputy Chairman pursuant to Standing Order No. 30. 
 
[The immediate past Chairman has indicated that he would like to exercise his right 
under Standing Order no. 30(3)(a) to stand as Deputy Chairman for the ensuing 
year.]    
 

 For Decision 
6. MINUTES 
 

 To approve the public minutes and summary of the meeting held on 25 February 
2015. 
 

 For Decision 
 (Pages 3 - 6) 

 
7. APPOINTMENT OF CO-OPTED GOVERNORS 
 

 Report of the Town Clerk. 
 

 For Decision 
 (Pages 7 - 8) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 



3 
 

8. APPOINTMENT OF THE BURSARY COMMITTEE 
 

 To appoint the Bursary Committee for the year ensuing – to comprise the Chairman 
and Deputy Chairman of the Board and up to five other Governors. 
 
The Bursary Committee for 2014/15:- 
Deputy Dr. Giles Shilson (Chairman) 
Ian Seaton (Deputy Chairman) 
Deputy Joyce Nash 
Sylvia Moys 
Deputy the Reverend Stephen Haines 
Dame Mary Richardson 
Deputy James Thomson 
 
[N.B. The Sub Committee did not meet in 2014/15.] 
 

 For Decision 
9. APPOINTMENT OF THE REFERENCE SUB COMMITTEE 
 

 To appoint a Reference Sub Committee to consider arrears of School fees, sabbatical 
leave and Estimates (including fee increases and other such matters as the Board 
may from time to time decide). 
 
Reference Sub Committee 2014/15:- 
Deputy Dr Giles Shilson (Chairman) 
Ian Seaton (Deputy Chairman) 
Deputy Joyce Nash 
Sylvia Moys 
Deputy the Reverend Stephen Haines 
Edward Lord 
Deputy James Thomson 
 
[N.B. The Sub Committee did not meet in 2014/15.] 
 
 

 For Decision 
10. APPOINTMENT OF THE AGBIS REPRESENTATIVE 
 

 To appoint a representative to the Association of Governing Bodies of Independent 
Schools for the ensuing year. 
 
Representative in 2014/15:- 
Edward Lord 

 For Decision 
 

11. ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNING BODIES OF INDEPENDENT SCHOOLS - 
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND CONFERENCE 

 

 Report of the Board’s AGBIS representative. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 9 - 22) 

 



4 
 

12. TEACHERS' PAY PANEL 
 

 Report of the Director Human Resources. 
 

 For Decision 
 (Pages 23 - 28) 

 
13. HEAD'S REPORT 
 

 Report of the Head of the City of London School. 
 

 For Information 
 (Pages 29 - 36) 

 
14. COUNTER-TERRORISM AND SECURITY ACT 2015 
 

 Report of the Remembrancer. 
 

 For Information 
 (Pages 37 - 48) 

 
15. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE BOARD 
 
16. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
 
17. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 

 MOTION - That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 
be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act. 
 

Part 2 - Non-Public Agenda 
 
18. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES 
 

 To agree the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 25 February 2015. 
 

 For Decision 
 (Pages 49 - 52) 

 
19. EDUCATION STRATEGY 
 

 Report of the Head of the City of London School. 
 

 For Information 
 (Pages 53 - 58) 
20. HEAD'S REPORT 
 

 Report of the Head of the City of London School. 
 For Information 
 (Pages 59 - 70) 

 



5 
 

21. SCHOOL FEES - SERVICE BASED REVIEW 
 

 Report of the Head of the City of London School. 
 

 For Information 
 (Pages 71 - 76) 

 
22. SCHOLARSHIPS AND BURSARIES - SERVICE BASED REVIEW 
 

 Report of the Head of the City of London School.  
 

 For Information 
 (Pages 77 - 82) 

 
23. SCHOOL SECURITY 
 

 Report of the Head of the City of London School. 
 

 For Information 
 (Pages 83 - 84) 

 
24. SABBATICAL APPLICATIONS 
 

 Report of the Head of the City of London School. 
 

 For Decision 
 (Pages 85 - 90) 

 
25. RISK REGISTER 
 

 Report of the Head (To Follow). 
 

 For Decision 
 

26. WAIVER OF PROCUREMENT REGULATIONS TO PURCHASE A MANAGEMENT 
INFORMATION SYSTEM 

 

 Report of the Head. 
 

 For Information 
 (Pages 91 - 96) 

 
27. CHILD PROTECTION ISSUES - ANNUAL REPORT 
 

 Report of the Head. 
 

 For Information 
 (Pages 97 - 108) 

 
28. NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 

BOARD 
 



6 
 

29. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND 
WHICH THE BOARD AGREES SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE PUBLIC 
ARE EXCLUDED 

 
30. GOVERNORS ONLY ITEMS 
 
 a) Governors Only minutes  (Pages 109 - 110) 

 

  To agree the Governors only minutes of the meeting held on 25 February 2015.  
 

 b) The Chairman to be heard relative to a staffing matter.   
 



YARROW, Mayor RESOLVED: That the Court of Common 
Council holden in the Guildhall of the City of 
London on Thursday 23rd April 2015, doth 
hereby appoint the following Committee 
until the first meeting of the Court in April, 
2016. 

 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS OF THE CITY OF LONDON SCHOOL 

 
1. Constitution 

A Non-Ward Committee consisting of, 

 one Alderman nominated by the Court of Aldermen 

 up to 10 Commoners elected by the Court of Common Council at least one of whom shall have fewer 
than five years’ service on the Court at the time of their appointment 

 the following ex-officio Members:- 
- the Chairman of the Board of Governors of City of London School for Girls 
- the Chairman of the Board of Governors of City of London Freemen’s School 

 up to five co-opted non-City of London Corporation Governors with experience relevant to the Board 
 
The Chairman of the Board shall be elected from the City Corporation Members. 

 
2. Quorum  

The quorum consists of any five Common Council Governors. 
 

Any decision taken by the Board of Governors shall require the agreement of a majority of Common Council 
Governors present at the meeting and voting. 

 
3. Membership 2015/16 

  ALDERMEN 
 

2 David Andrew Graves 

  COMMONERS 
 

17 (4) William Harry Dove, O.B.E., J.P., Deputy 

13 (4) Joyce Carruthers Nash, O.B.E., Deputy 

3 (3) Sophie Anne Fernandes 

7 (3) Charles Edward Lord, O.B.E., J.P. 

7 (3) Dr Giles Robert Evelyn Shilson, Deputy 

7 (2) Ian Christopher Norman Seaton 

10 (2) The Revd. Stephen Decatur Haines, M.A., Deputy 

3 (2) James Michael Douglas Thomson, Deputy 

7 (1) Marianne Bernadette Fredericks 

4 (1) Sylvia Doreen Moys 

 

 together with:- 

 Mr R. Lehmann 

 Lord Levene of Portsoken 

 Mr C. S.  Martin, M.A. 

 Dame Mary Richardson 

 Professor J.M.A. Whitehouse 

together with the ex-officio Members referred to in paragraph 1 above. 
 

4. Terms of Reference 
 
 To be responsible for:- 
(a) all School matters; 

 
(b) the management of the School land and buildings belonging to the City of London Corporation; 

 
(c) the appointment of the Headmaster/Headmistress and, where appropriate, the deputies and the Director of 

Finance. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 

Page 2



BOARD OF GOVERNORS OF THE CITY OF LONDON SCHOOL 
Wednesday, 25 February 2015  

 
Minutes of the meeting of the Board of Governors of the City of London School held 

at City of London School, Queen Victoria Street, EC4V 3AL on Wednesday, 25 
February 2015 at 11.00 am 

 
Present 
 
Members: 
Ian Seaton (Deputy Chairman) 
Deputy Billy Dove 
Marianne Fredericks 
Alderman David Graves 
Deputy the Revd Stephen Haines 
Ronel Lehmann (External Member) 
Lord Levene of Portsoken (External 
Member) 
 

Edward Lord 
Christopher Martin (External Member) 
Sylvia Moys 
Deputy Joyce Nash 
Dame Mary Richardson (External Member) 
Deputy James Thomson 
Prof. Whitehouse (External Member) 
 

 
Officers: 
Jacqui Daniels 
Sarah Port 

Town Clerk’s Department 
Chamberlain's Department 

Sarah Fletcher 
Phillip Everett 

Head, City of London School 
City of London School 

Chrissie Morgan Director of Human Resources 

 
The Deputy Chairman Ian Seaton in the Chair 
 

1. APOLOGIES  
Apologies were received from the Chairman Deputy Dr Giles Shilson and 
Sophie Fernandes. 
 

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN 
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA  
The Deputy Chairman declared that he was on the Education Board. 
 

3. MINUTES  
The minutes of the previous meeting, held on the 1 December 2014, were 
agreed as an accurate record. 
 
Matters Arising 
First Aid Training (page 2) The Head confirmed that first aid training of pupils 
was in progress and she continued to investigate ways of providing alternative 
methods of ensuring that all pupils would leave the School adequately trained.  
 

4. DISCLOSURE AND BARRING REQUIREMENTS FOR SCHOOL 
GOVERNORS APPOINTED BY THE COURT OF COMMON COUNCIL  
A report of the Town Clerk outlined the City of London Corporation’s obligations 
in relation to disclosure and barring service (DBS) requirements for Chairmen, 

Page 3

Agenda Item 6



Governors on boards of the City’s independent schools, academies and one 
maintained school. 
 
Governors were reminded of the importance of completing a DBS check and, if 
they had not already, they were encouraged to do so as soon as possible. The 
Board discussed the process and the Town Clerk confirmed that the certificate 
was transferable although you needed to register on-line for the automatic 
renewal service within 14 days of the certificate being issued. Governors were 
reminded that the HR Department would be able to advise on any specific 
queries. 
 
RECEIVED. 
 

5. HEAD'S REPORT  
The Board received a report of the Head of the City of London School which 
updated Governors on School matters. 
 
During the course of discussion, the following points were raised:- 

 Governors congratulated all concerned on the outstanding Oxbridge offers 
and suggested that consideration be given to including offers to other 
bodies in next year’s report; 

 The relative benefits of both Oxford and Cambridge were referred to; 

 It was noted that the Commons Education Committee had indicated that 
they would shortly making PSHE a compulsory subject for all year groups; 

 A Governor referred to the new Medical School at the University of 
Buckingham and offered to encourage links between the School and the 
University; 

 It was noted that there were a fair number of pupils studying languages and 
engineering at present; and 

 Advice on what degrees could lead to which career was provided by the 
University advice service in the School and the Head advised that steps 
were being taken to improve this provision and to include advice and case 
histories from Alumni. 
 

RESOLVED – That the:- 
1) report be noted; and  
2) revised Pupil & Parent Data Protection Policy be endorsed.  
 
 

6. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE BOARD  
In answer to a Governor’s question the Town Clerk reported that a Committee 
Dinner would be held on 17 November 2015. 
 

7. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT  
There were no urgent items. 
 

8. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
RESOLVED - That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds 

Page 4



that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I 
of the Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.  
 
Item No.                                         Exempt Paragraphs    
9 & 10     3 
 

9. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES  
The minutes of the meeting held on the 1 December 2014 were approved as an 
accurate record. 
 
 

10. HEAD'S REPORT  
The Board received a report of the Head which provided an update to 
Governors on admissions, staff changes, the development office and 
fundraising strategy update.   
 

11. NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF 
THE BOARD  
Questions were asked about progress on the Strategy Review and noise 
nuisance outside the School. 
 
 

12. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
AND WHICH THE BOARD AGREES SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST 
THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED  
The Chairman agreed that the following Governors’ only items may be 
considered as matters of urgency. 
 
 

SUMMARY OF GOVERNORS ONLY ITEM  
 
1) TEACHERS PAY AWARD PROCESS AND THE JCC 
The Board considered and approved a verbal report of the Director HR 
concerning the Teachers’ Pay Award process and the membership of the JCC. 
 
2) STAFFING MATTER 
The Board considered a staffing matter. 
 

 
 
The meeting ended at 12.50 pm 
 
 
 

 

Chairman 
 
 
Contact Officer: Jacqui Daniels 
tel. no.: 020 7332 1480 
jacqui.daniels@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



Committee: Date: 

Board of Governors of the City of London School   17 June 2015 

Subject:  

Re-appointment of Co-opted Governors 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Town Clerk 

For Decision 

 

Summary 

This report requests that Governors consider the re-appointment of Lord Levene, 
Christopher Martin and Dame Mary Richardson as co-opted Governors of the Board for 
further three year-terms. 

Recommendation 

Governors are asked to consider the re-appointment of Lord Levene, Christopher Martin 
and Dame Mary Richardson onto the Board for a further term of three years. 

 
 

 
Main Report 

 
Background 
1. It was agreed, by this Board, that the appointment of all co-opted 

Governors would be reviewed after they had completed a period of 3 years 
in office. Candidates would then be given the opportunity to re-apply for 
their position on the Board if they so wished.  

 
2. The three year terms of office for Dame Mary Richardson and Christopher 

Martin came to an end in late February 2015 and the current three year 
term of office for Lord Levene will come to an end later this month. All have 
expressed a willingness to stand for re-election as co-opted Governors  

 
3. I can report that, since their last appointment to the Board, out of a possible 

14 Board meetings, Dame Mary Richardson has attended 10 and 
Christopher Martin has attended 13. Out of a possible 13 Board meetings, 
Lord Levene has attended 10.  

 
4. To aid the Board’s decision, each co-opted Governor has been invited to 

submit 100 words in support of their candidature and their details are 
attached in Paragraphs A) to C) below. 

 
 A) Lord Levene 

Having been educated at the School, I have always been very aware of the 
high standard of education that the school offers, and am anxious to help to 
ensure that it continues. I have served as a Governor of the School, as a 
Governor of the City of London School for Girls, and as a Governor and 
Vice Chairman of the Sir John Cass Primary School. My two sons were 

Page 7

Agenda Item 7



educated at the School, and my daughter at the Girls School, so I have a 
long connection and understanding of the School, its history and aims and 
achievements.  I have a strong knowledge of the interface with the 
Corporation of London having served as a Common Councilman, 
Alderman, Sheriff and Lord Mayor. 

 
B) Christopher Martin  
“I wish to be considered for reappointment as a Governor of CLSB. 
 
Since becoming a co-opted governor in 1998, I have developed a keen 
affection for CLS and was pleased to be able to play a part in the appointment 
of our Head. I act currently as the Governor with responsibility for Child 
Protection. 
 
I was a headmaster for 20 years in Bristol and at Millfield. I served for two 
terms on the Privy Council Education Committee and have been a Trustee for 
Coram Life Education. I am a Governor of Springfields Academy, a special 
school in Calne, and of Red Maids School in Bristol.”  
 
C) Dame Mary Richardson 
“I should be honoured to be considered for a further term as a co-opted 
governor, to be of service to the school and to make a contribution.  
 
I am a former Headteacher and through my work as CE, HSBC Global 
Education Trust, have knowledge of educational systems in many parts of the 
world. I am on the bursary committee at CLS and am a governor and chair of 
various committees at a university and a state boarding school, and therefore 
have current knowledge of regulations, standards and student progression. 
Until 2014, I chaired an organisation specialising in governance. 
 
I am on the MOD/DFE committee for cadet bursaries and involved both in the 
cadet movement and in research regarding the effects of the cadet experience 
on student alienation, personal development and well-being.  I have some 
knowledge of fundraising for scholarships.  I delight in meeting HSBC 
Scholars - and reminding HSBC of their life-changing support. 
 
I am committed to this outstanding school, its students and staff, and to its 
continuing development.”  
 

7. Governors are asked to consider the re-appointment of the candidates for 
further three year terms.  

 
 
Contact: 
Jacqui Daniels 
020 7332 1480 
jacqui.daniels@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 

Page 8



1 
 

Committee: 
 
Board of Governors of the City of London School 
 

Date: 
 
17 June 2015 
 

Subject: 
Association of Governing Bodies of Independent Schools 
Annual General Meeting and Conference 
 

Public 

Report of: 
 
Edward Lord, AGBIS Representative 
 

For Decision 

 
Summary 

 
The AGBIS Conference took place on Tuesday 10 March. The day included the 
formal AGM, a keynote address by Lord Waldegrave, Provost of Eton College, and a 
number of breakout sessions.  
 
The breakout session on governance seemed of relevance and I felt it important to 
report to the Board of Governors for your consideration.  
 
Those presenting in that session emphasised the need for regular self-assessment 
by governing bodies, with external review every four to five years. They also ran 
through a number of examples of best practice, including the minimum requirements 
for governors to have committees covering education, finance, and governance 
issues. Other committees might cover development, pastoral, property, and staffing 
issues. Some of those could be combined.   
 
Recommendations 
 

1. That the report be noted; 
 

2. That Members give consideration to undertaking internally (or commissioning 
externally) a review of governance at City of London School to ensure that the 
Board is following best practice for similar schools (within the context of being 
part of the City of London Corporation); and 
 

3. That Members give consideration as to whether the Board ought to appoint 
any committees. 

 

 
Main Report 

 
Introduction 
 
1. The Annual General Meeting and Annual Conference of the Association of 

Governing Bodies of Independent Schools (AGBIS) took place on Tuesday 10 
March 2015 at Drapers‟ Hall. Representatives of over 130 schools of various 
sizes and types attended.   

Page 9

Agenda Item 11



2 
 

Annual General Meeting 
 
2. The Annual General Meeting was formal and short. The meeting was 

addressed briefly by the Chairman, Richard Green (Prior‟s Field School) and 
Honorary Treasurer, Michael Goolden (Benenden). Members approved the 
minutes of the 2014 AGM; received the report of the directors and audited 
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 (a copy of which I 
have deposited with the Clerk to the Governors for reference); reappointed 
haysmcintyre as auditors; and received the results of the election of directors: 

 
Roger Chapman  Mill Hill * 
Pamela Edmonds  St Michael‟s Prep 
Deborah Knight  Haberdashers‟ Askes‟ (Boys) 
Rosanne Musgrave  St Albans High 
Ken Young   The Royal Russell * 

 
*re-elected 

 
3. One point of concern, which I raised after the meeting with Stuart Westley, 

AGBIS General Secretary, was that the directors‟ report and financial 
statements were not circulated in advance of the AGM and were laid around 
on delegates‟ chairs, which meant that they did not have time to read, let 
alone digest, the content prior to them being put to the vote at the meeting. I 
commented that this was not good governance practice and that all member 
schools, not just those attending the AGM, should have sight of them – 
perhaps as a download from the AGBIS website – ahead of the AGM. He 
offered to take this back for review.  

 
Keynote Address 
 
4. The keynote address was delivered by the Right Honourable the Lord 

Waldegrave of North Hill, former Conservative minister from 1981 to 1997, 
now Provost (Chairman of Governors) of Eton College. Lord Waldegrave‟s 
theme was “From the Vision to the Stategy”. Whilst he accepted that Eton is in 
a very different position to most independent schools, there were nonetheless 
some common principles which applied to all.  

 
5. Lord Waldegrave was clear that Governors should set the vision for their 

school, and that the Governors and Head should together develop a Strategy, 
which would then be implemented by the Head and their senior team. He 
went on to discuss key themes that he felt were relevant including the need to 
develop outreach programmes in order to demonstrate public benefit. 
Particularly important for charitable schools.  

 
Breakout Session: Governance Review 
 
6. I attended a breakout session on school governance, particular focussing on 

the need for regular review of governing body capability. Attached as 
appendices to this report are the handouts from that session: 

 

Page 10



3 
 

 Independent Schools Inspectorate – Grade descriptors for „the quality of 
governance‟; 

 Independent Schools Council – Joint Understanding of Good Governance 

 AGBIS – Governing Body Self Review Pro Forma 

 National Governors Association and APPG on Education Governance and 
Leadership – Twenty key questions for a school governing body to ask 
itself 

 
7. It was strongly recommended that governing bodies should annually or 

biennially undertake a self-assessment of governance and should commission 
an external review every four to five years. In my experience on this Board, I 
am conscious that we have not reviewed our capability and structures. It 
therefore struck me that it might be helpful for the CLS Board of Governors to 
undertake or commission such a review in order to ensure that we are 
following best practice for similar schools. Naturally any review of governance 
would need to take into account our unique nature as part of the City of 
London Corporation.  

 
8. The session also covered other aspects of best practice, including the 

expectation that governing bodies would normally have a range of committees 
covering, inter alia: 

 

 Development; 

 Education; 

 Finance;  

 Governance and nominations;  

 Pastoral matters; 

 Property; and  

 Staffing  
 
although it was recognised that some of those could be combined.  This might 
be something that the Board of Governors might want to consider for CLS.  

 
Conclusion 
 
9. Colleagues will, I am sure, agree that City of London School should, wherever 

possible follow best practice in corporate governance and I submit this report 
as a starting point for discussion. 

 
 
Edward Lord 
AGBIS Representative 
 
T: 020 7448 8014 
E: city@edwardlord.org  
 
 

Page 11

mailto:city@edwardlord.org


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Committee(s) Dated: 
 

City of London Freemen’s School 
City of London School 
City of London School for Girls 

27 April 2015  
17 June 2015 
22 June 2015 

Subject: 
Teachers’ Pay Award 2015-6 

Public 
 

Report of: 
Director of Human Resources 

For Decision 

 
 

Summary 
 

This report informs the Board of the recent pay discussions that have taken place on 
behalf of the Board of Governors regarding the Staff Side and Common Room pay 
claim for September 2015.  
 

Recommendation(s) 
 
Governors are asked to: 

 note the report. 

 agree the continuation of the Teachers’ Pay Panel in relation to any pay claim 
made on behalf of the Staff Side and Common Rooms for the academic year 
commencing in September 2016. 

 
 

Main Report 
 
 

Background 
 

1. As agreed by the Board of Governors earlier this year, the Teachers’ Pay 
Panel was established to consider the pay claim made on behalf of teachers 
at the three City Schools. The Terms of Reference for the Teachers’ Pay 
Panel are reported separately on the agenda.  

 
 
Current Position 
 

2. A meeting of the Teachers’ Pay Panel took place on 25 March 2015. The 
Chairmen from the City of London Freemen’s School and City of London 
School for Girls and the Deputy Chairman of the City of London School were 
in attendance. The teachers’ pay claim was presented by representatives 
from the three City Schools and the ATL representative. A formal response 
from the Teachers’ Pay Panel was made following the meeting and is 
attached as Appendix 1.This included a proposed pay increase of 2% for staff 
on the teachers’ main grade, management grades and responsibility 
allowances effective from 1 September 2015. 
 

Page 23

Agenda Item 12



3. The first Teachers’ Pay Panel and been successful in addressing concerns 
that have been raised by the Staff Side and Common Rooms regarding the 
time taken to determine any pay award. The Staff Side and Common Rooms 
have welcomed the opportunity to meet with the Chairmen of the City 
Schools. 

 
4. The Staff Side and Common Room Chairman has written to confirm that the 

proposed pay increase of 2% on the teachers’ main grade, management 
grades and responsibility allowances has been accepted at all three schools. 

 
Options 
  

5. In accordance with the Terms of Reference for the Teachers’ Pay Panel, the 
Board of Governors is asked to confirm the continuation of the Teachers’ Pay 
Panel to consider any pay award for teaching staff effective from September 
2016. 

 
 
Proposal and Conclusion 
 

6. The Pay Panel meeting provided a forum for the Chairmen to discuss the pay 
submission made on behalf of the teaching staff. it has been successful in 
securing an early decision regarding pay for teaching staff. It is suggested the 
Teachers’ Pay Panel should continue to function to consider pay for the 
academic year commencing from September 2016. 

 
Appendices 
 

Appendix 1 – letter of 27 March 2015 to the Staff Side and Common Room 
representatives. 

 
 
 
 
 
Tracey Jansen  
Senior Human Resources Manager  
 
T: e.g. 020 7332 3289 
E: tracey.jansen@cityoflondon.gov.uk] 
 

Page 24

mailto:tracey.jansen@cityoflondon.gov.uk


Page 25



Page 26



 

 

APPENDIX 
Teachers Pay Panel: Terms of Reference 
 
Purpose of the Teachers’ Pay Panel 
1. The Boards of Governors of the City of London School, the City of London 

School for Girls and the City of London Freemen’s School have delegated to a 
Teachers’ Pay Panel, consisting of the Chairmen of their Boards, the authority to 
consult and decide upon the annual teachers’ pay award within agreed 
parameters from the Boards.   
 

2. The Teachers’ Pay Panel will consult with  the Schools’ Staff Side or Common 
Room representatives and an official from the Association of Teachers and 
Lecturers regarding the Teachers’ pay submission. 
  

3. The Teachers’ Pay Panel will usually meet in March of each year. The Panel 
may decide to hold further meetings or conduct further communications via letter 
if necessary. However the aim will be to have made any decisions regarding pay 
by the end of the Spring term. 

 
Membership: 
4. The membership shall be as follows: 

 The Chairmen of the Boards of Governors of the City of London School, the 
City of London School for Girls and the City of London Freemen’s School. In 
their absence they may nominate a deputy from the membership of their 
Board of Governors. 

 
One of the Chairmen of the Boards of Governors will act as the Chairman of 
the Teachers’ Pay Panel on an annual rotation. 

   
Quorum: 
5. The Quorum will be three and will consist of a Governor from each of the three 
Boards. 
  
Consultation Process: 
6. During the process of deliberation, the Teachers’ Pay Panel will meet with:  

 One representative from  the Staff Side or Common Room of the City 
of London School, the City of London School for Girls and the City of 
London Freemen’s School; and  

 The full time official from the Association of Teachers and Lecturers. 
 
7. The following will be in attendance during deliberations in an advisory capacity: 

The Director of Human Resources 
The Heads of the City of London School, the City of London School for Girls 
and the City of London Freemen’s School or in their absence their Deputy. 

 
Remit of the Teachers’ Pay Panel: 
8. To approve any pay award that will apply to the teachers’ main grade and all 

teachers’ management grades. 
 

Page 27



 

 

9. Any decisions around responsibility and other allowances or payments will be 
specified. 

  
Timing 
The timing of the process will be as follows:- 

 Financial information will be provided by the schools to the Staff Side and 
Common Room representatives in the autumn term of each year. 

 Any pay submission made by the Staff Side and Common Room will be made 
to a meeting of the Joint Consultative Committee in January/early February of 
each year. 

 Teachers’ Pay Panel will usually meet in March. 

 Final decision to be made by the end of the Spring term if at all possible. 
 
Termination 
10 The Boards of Governors will review on an annual basis the continuation of 

the Teachers’ Pay Panel. 
 

Page 28



Committee(s): Date(s): 

Board of Governors of the City of 
London School 

  17 June 2015 

Subject:  

Head’s Report 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Sarah Fletcher, Head, City of London School 

For Information 

 

 

Summary 

The Head reports on the following: 
 

 Means tested Sponsored Awards for September 2015 entry 

 HSBC Financial Support renewal 

 Health and Safety matters 

 Professional Development Update 

 Thames Tideway Tunnel Update 

 Introduction of ISAMS as the School’s Management Information 
System as from September 2015 

 Building works planned for Summer 2015 
 
Recommendation 

Members are asked to note the report. 
 

 
Main Report 

 
1. Means Tested Sponsored Awards for September 2015 entry 

 
Eight Means Tested Sponsored Awards covering full tuition fees and a further such 
award covering three-quarters of tuition fees have been made for September 2015 
entry. Five of these are for entry into the First Form and four for the Sixth Form. 
These awards are available due to the generosity of: 
 
HSBC 
John Carpenter Club 
City of London School Bursary Trust (profits from Tate Modern Gala Dinner) 
The Presidents’ Club Charitable Trust 
The Carpenters Club 
Some individuals who wish to remain anonymous 
 
The School is very grateful to the above for their most generous support. 
 

Page 29

Agenda Item 13



The award of eight new Means Tested Sponsored Scholarships referred to above 
brings the total number of full fee scholarships awarded at the City of London School 
since the launch of the scholarship campaign in November 2000 to 209. In addition 
16 pupils have been awarded substantial bursaries covering the majority of their 
school fees. 
 

2. HSBC Financial Support Renewal 
 
HSBC Holdings plc have generously agreed to provide 4 means tested sponsored 
awards to pupils entering the School’s Sixth Form in each of September 2015, 
September 2016 and September 2017. The School is very grateful for the company’s 
continued support. 
 

3. Health and Safety Matters 
 

a) The School invited the City’s Fire Safety Advisor to attend a fire drill at the 
School on 17 February. He kindly attended the next Health and Safety 
Committee on 3 March as well to feed back his observations. He was pleased 
with the School’s procedures but had some suggestions as to how these 
could be improved further. An action plan has been drawn up and the majority 
of his recommendations have now been implemented. 

b) The Health and Safety Committee also met on 28 April. The Committee 
received a briefing on the improvements which are being made in respect of 
school security. Procedures regarding lone working were also discussed and 
agreed. 
 

4. Professional Development Update 
 
Details of INSET courses attended by teaching staff during the current academic 
year are included at Appendix 1. 
 

5. Thames Tideway Tunnel Update 
 
The Department of the Built Environment have kindly included the School’s concerns 
in their comments on the Thames Tideway Tunnel Draft Submissions. Specifically 
the School’s concerns regarding the noise impact in terms of both (i) the construction 
due to take place outside the School and (ii) the ongoing effects of the relocation of 
the pier closer to the School. They have also stated that the School is keen to apply 
for double glazing to reduce the noise impact and offered to set up a meeting to 
discuss these concerns in due course. 

 
 

6. Introduction of ISAMS as the School’s Management Information System 
as from September 2015 

 
The School is currently adopting a new MIS, iSAMS, which will be operational 
with effect from this September. 
ISAMS provides a central school database designed for the independent 
educational sector and offers the following benefits: 

Page 30



 A flexible software architecture, suitable for interfacing with third party 
applications; 

 Efficiencies of a single sign-in, central solution and reduced duplication 
of data entry; 

 A significantly improved degree of customisation to suit the individual 
needs of the School; 

 Accessible and responsive customer support, focused on the 
independent sector; 

 A browser interface, providing a platform agnostic solution offering 
remote access to managed areas of the database from a variety of 
devices; 

 A database that meets the needs of a forward looking strategy, 
enabling the free-flow of accurate, timely management information to 
suit the needs of the School into the future. 

 
 

7. Building works planned for Summer 2015 
 

The Summer building programme involves the reconfiguration of offices in 
order to maximise available space, and to meet the security needs of the 
premises and strategic restructuring among the management and support 
staff.  The benefits and aims are as follows: 

 To provide the foundation for a phased improvement to the School 
access and security arrangements; 

 Provide a central administrative office, offering improved accessibility 
to staff, pupils and parents; 

 To integrate the School Reception with the Administrative hub of the 
School; 

 To streamline department structures and management workflow; 

 To suit the needs of the School strategic plan.  
 

 
Sarah Fletcher 
Head, City of London School 
 
T: 020 7489 4701 
E: skf@clsb.org.uk 

 

Page 31

mailto:skf@clsb.org.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



 

 

Committee: Date: 

Board of Governors of the City of London Freemen‟s 
School 

Board of Governors of the City of London School 

Board of Governors of the City of London School for 
Girls 

15th June 2015 

17th June 2015 

22nd June 2015 

Subject: 

Counter-Terrorism and Security Act 2015 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Remembrancer 

For Information 

 

Summary 

This report advises the Board of the relevant provisions of the Counter-Terrorism 
and Security Act 2015, which places two new duties on the proprietors of 
independent schools (and therefore on the Board in discharging the functions of 
the City Corporation as proprietor). First, the Board will need to have due regard to 
the need to prevent people from being drawn into terrorism. Second, the Board will 
need to co-operate with panels put in place by local authorities to identify and 
provide support to those who are vulnerable to being drawn into terrorism. 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that the Board note this Report and the duties placed on the 
Board described in paragraphs 2 and 3 below. 

Main Report 

1. The Counter-Terrorism and Security Act 2015 passed quickly through 
Parliament in the early part of this year. Attention has focused on measures to 
restrict the ability of British citizens to return to the United Kingdom after going 
abroad to participate in terrorist activities. This Report deals with two new 
duties which apply to educational institutions, including the City Corporation‟s 
independent schools. The duties are intended to provide a statutory footing 
for existing policies such as the „Prevent‟ strategy and the „Channel‟ 
programme. 

2. First, the Board, in discharging the functions of the City Corporation as the 
proprietor of the School, will come under a general duty to “have due regard 
to the need to prevent people from being drawn into terrorism.” This is widely 
known as the „Prevent duty‟. The Secretary of State has issued statutory 
guidance about how the duty is to be put into practice. The generally 
applicable sections of the guidance, together with the sector-specific 
guidance relating to schools, are appended to this Report. The Board is 
required to have regard to this guidance. If the Secretary of State considers 

Page 37

Agenda Item 14



 

 

that a body is failing adequately to fulfil the Prevent duty, then the Secretary 
of State may issue binding directions in order to secure its performance. The 
duty comes into force on 1st July 2015. 

3. Second, the Board (along with other “partner” bodies) is, in discharging the 
functions of the City Corporation as the proprietor of the School, under a duty 
to co-operate “so far as appropriate and reasonably practicable” with panels 
set up by local authorities in order to identify and provide support to those 
who are vulnerable to being drawn into terrorism. Each local authority has to 
ensure that such a panel, which is to include representatives from the local 
authority and the police, is in place for its area. The first duty of the panel is to 
assess the extent to which identified individuals are vulnerable to being drawn 
into terrorism. If the panel then considers that any individual should be offered 
support to reduce his vulnerability, it is able to prepare a “support plan” for the 
individual and make arrangements for its implementation. Alternatively, the 
panel is able to refer individuals to health or social care services. 

Appendices 

 Extracts from “Prevent duty guidance: Statutory guidance issued under 
section 29 of the Counter-Terrorism and Security Act 2015”, Home Office, 
March 2015. 

Background Papers 

Report of the Remembrancer on the Counter-Terrorism and Security Bill: 

- Police Committee, 16th January 2015 

- Policy and Resources Committee, 22nd January 2015 

- Community and Children‟s Services Committee, 13th February 2015 

- Safer City Partnership Strategy Group, 3rd March 2015 

Sam Cook 
Assistant Parliamentary Affairs Counsel, Remembrancer‟s Office 

020 7332 3045 
sam.cook@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Page 38

mailto:sam.cook@cityoflondon.gov.uk


Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 48



Document is Restricted

Page 49

Agenda Item 18
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 53

Agenda Item 19
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 59

Agenda Item 20
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 69

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 71

Agenda Item 21
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 75

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 77

Agenda Item 22
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 81

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 83

Agenda Item 23
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 85

Agenda Item 24
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 87

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 91

Agenda Item 26
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 97

Agenda Item 27
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 99

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 105

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Order of the Common Council
	6 Minutes
	7 Appointment of Co-opted Governors
	11 Association of Governing Bodies of Independent Schools - Annual General Meeting and Conference
	AGBIS Appendix

	12 Teachers' Pay Panel
	Taechers Pay Panel Appendix 1
	APPENDIX Teachers' Pay Panel TofRef

	13 Head's Report
	150617 Head Public Report Appendix 1

	14 Counter-Terrorism and Security Act 2015
	Counter Terrorism Bill Prevent Guidance - Schools Extracts - Appendix

	18 Non-Public Minutes
	19 Education Strategy
	20 Head's Report
	150617 Heads NP Report Appendix 1

	21 School Fees - Service Based Review
	150617 School Fees - Service Based Review Appendix 1

	22 Scholarships and Bursaries - Service Based Review
	150617 Scholarships and Bursaries - Service Based Review Appendix

	23 School Security
	24 Sabbatical Applications
	150617 Sabbatical Leave Applications APPENDIX

	26 Waiver of Procurement Regulations to purchase a Management Information System
	27 Child Protection Issues - annual report
	150617 Annual Report on Child Protection Appendix 1
	150617 Annual Report on Child Protection Appendix 2


